

SENATE FILE NO. SF0144

State library board-repeal.

Sponsored by: Senator(s) Johnson and Representative(s) Buchanan

A BILL

for

1 AN ACT relating to the Wyoming state library; abolishing  
2 the state library board; providing conforming amendments;  
3 and providing for an effective date.

4

5 *Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the State of Wyoming:*

6

7 **Section 1.** W.S. 9-2-419, 9-2-1026.5,  
8 9-2-1026.6(a) (intro) and (f), 9-2-1026.7(a) (ii) and (d) and  
9 9-2-2008(b) are amended to read:

10

11 **9-2-419. Marking, defacing, removing or tampering**  
12 **with certain materials; penalty.**

13

14 Any person marking, defacing, removing or tampering in any  
15 manner whatsoever with any property acquired under W.S.  
16 9-2-404 through 9-2-415, by the director or, acquired under

1 W.S. 9-2-1026.5 through 9-2-1026.7 by the state librarian  
2 ~~or state library board~~ is guilty of a misdemeanor  
3 punishable by a fine of not more than one hundred dollars  
4 (\$100.00).

5

6 **9-2-1026.5. Federal library funds.**

7

8 (a) ~~With the approval of~~ The director ~~the state~~  
9 ~~library board~~ may accept and receive all funds, monies or  
10 library materials made available by the federal government  
11 for the improvement and development of public library  
12 services in the state.

13

14 (b) The state treasurer is custodian of all federal  
15 funds allocated to the state for statewide library services  
16 and shall disburse the funds on the requisition of ~~the~~  
17 ~~state library board subject to approval of~~ the director and  
18 subject to other provisions of law.

19

20 **9-2-1026.6. State librarian; appointment;**  
21 **qualifications; filing of state publications; deposit of**  
22 **designated documents; exchange of session laws.**

23

1 (a) A state librarian shall be appointed by the  
2 director of the department of administration and  
3 information ~~after consultation with the board~~ and shall  
4 serve as the administrator of the state library division of  
5 the department. The state librarian shall have:

6

7 (f) The state librarian shall guide local library  
8 agencies participating in any state plan ~~adopted by the~~  
9 ~~board and approved by the director~~ for the expenditure of  
10 any federal funds or materials. The state librarian shall  
11 assure compliance with the policies and methods of  
12 administration ~~adopted by the board~~ under the state plan.

13

14 **9-2-1026.7. State librarian; acquisition of books and**  
15 **materials; disposition of outdated and unused books;**  
16 **disposition of unused materials and supplies; promulgation**  
17 **of rules.**

18

19 (a) With the approval of the director, the state  
20 librarian may:

21

22 (ii) Sell outdated and unused books in the  
23 collection of the state library when the ~~board~~director  
24 deems the sale necessary due to limited shelf space;

1

2 (d) The department ~~in consultation with the board~~ may  
3 promulgate necessary rules and regulations to effectuate  
4 the purposes of this section.

5

6 **9-2-2008. Department of administration and**  
7 **information created; director appointed; structure.**

8

9 (b) The administrative head of the department shall  
10 be a director appointed by the governor not later than July  
11 1, 1990. The director shall prepare a plan for  
12 reorganization of the agencies, programs and functions  
13 specified in this section and submit it to the governor for  
14 approval. The department reorganization plan, as approved,  
15 shall be submitted to the joint appropriations interim  
16 committee and the select management audit committee of the  
17 legislature and made available to the public. The  
18 committees shall hold at least one (1) public hearing  
19 regarding the plan before the 1991 session of the  
20 legislature convenes. The select management audit committee  
21 shall report its advisory recommendations on the plan to  
22 the joint appropriations interim committee, including  
23 necessary legislation with respect to the plan. The joint  
24 appropriations interim committee shall consider the

1 recommendations and shall report to the legislature by  
2 December 1, 1990, its recommendations on the plan,  
3 including necessary legislation with respect to the plan.  
4 The plan, as approved by act of the legislature, shall be  
5 implemented not later than July 1, 1991. ~~Pending adoption~~  
6 ~~of the plan, the state library, archives, museums and~~  
7 ~~historical board shall have authority within the department~~  
8 ~~of administration for administration of the state library.~~

9  
10 **Section 2.** W.S. 9-2-1026.3 and 9-2-1026.4 are  
11 repealed.

12  
13 **Section 3.** This act is effective July 1, 2005.

14  
15 (END)